FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

Source Water Protection Plan Corporation Of Harpers Ferry

PWSID: WV3301912 Jefferson County

May 2024

Prepared By:

Stephen Paradis Public Works Administrator - Town of Harpers Ferry

In cooperation with Corporation Of Harpers Ferry WV Bureau for Public Health, Source Water Assessment and Protection Program This page is intentionally blank.

Stephen Paradis

Preparer's Name

Public Works Administrator - Town of Harpers Ferry

Title of Preparer

Name of Contractor(s)/Consultant(s)

I Certify the information in the source water protection plan is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Responsible party of designee authorized to sign for water utility is on file:

Stephen J. Paradis

Name of Authorizing Signatory:

Public Works Administrator - Town of Harpers Ferry, WV

Title of Authorizing Signatory:

5/24/2024

Date of Submission (mm/dd/yyyy):

This page is intentionally blank.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Purpose	1
1.1. What are the benefits of preparing a Source Water Protection Plan?	1
2.0 Background: WV Source Water Assessment and Protection Program	2
3.0 State Regulatory Requirements	3
4.0 System Information	4
5.0 Water Treatment and Storage	5
6.0 Delineations	7
7.0 Protection Team	9
8.0 Potential Sources of Significant Contamination	12
8.1. Confidentiality of PSSCs	12
8.2. Local and Regional PSSCs	12
8.3. Prioritization of Threats and Management Strategies	15
9.0 Implementation Plan for Management Strategies	16
10.0 Education and Outreach Strategies	23
11.0 Contingency Plan	26
11.1. Response Networks and Communication	26
11.2. Operation During Loss of Power	27
11.3. Future Water Supply Needs	28
11.4. Water Loss Calculation	29
11.5. Early Warning Monitoring System	30
12.0 Single Source Feasibility Study	32
13.0 Communication Plan	33
14.0 Emergency Response	34
15.0 Conclusion	35

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Population Served by CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	4
Table 2. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Water Treatment Information	5
Table 3. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Surface Water Sources	6
Table 4. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Ground Water Sources	6
Table 5. Watershed Delineation Information	8
Table 6. Protection Team Member and Contact Information	10
Table 7. Locally Identified potential Sources of Significant Contamination	14
Table 8. Priority PSSCs or Critical Areas	17
Table 9. Priority PSSC Management Strategies	17
Table 10. Education and Outreach Implementation Plan	24
Table 11. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Water Shortage Response Capacity	27
Table 12. Generator Capacity	27
Table 13. Future Water Supply Needs for Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	28
Table 14. Water Loss Information	29
Table 15. Early Warning Monitoring System Capabilities	30

APPENDICES

Appendix A. Figures and Tables

Appendix B. Early Warning Monitoring System Forms

Appendix C. Communication Plan Template

Appendix D. Single Source Feasibility

Appendix E. Supporting Documentation

SOURCE WATER PROGRAM ACRONYMS

AST	Aboveground Storage Tank
BMP	Best Management Practices
ERP	Emergency Response Plan
GWUDI	Ground Water Under the Direct Influence of Surface Water
LEPC	Local Emergency Planning Committee
OEHS	EED Office of Environmental Health Services/Environmental Engineering Division
PE	Professional Engineer
PSSCs	Potential Source of Significant Contamination
PWSU	Public Water System Utility
RAIN	River Alert Information Network
RPDC	Regional Planning and Development Council
SDWA	Safe Drinking Water Act
SWAP	Source Water Assessment and Protection
SWAPP	Source Water Assessment and Protection Program
SWP	Source Water Protection
SWPA	Source Water Protection Area
SWPP	Source Water Protection Plan
WARN	Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network
WHPA	Wellhead Protection Area
WHPP	Wellhead Protection Program
WSDA	Watershed Delineation Area
WVBPH	West Virginia Bureau for Public Health
WVDEP	West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection
WVDHHR	West Virginia Department of Health and Human Resources
WVDHSEM	West Virginia Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management
ZCC	Zone of Critical Concern
ZPC	Zone of Peripheral Concern

1.0 PURPOSE

The goal of the West Virginia Bureau of Public Health (WVBPH) source water assessment and protection (SWAP) program is to prevent degradation of source waters which may preclude present and future uses of drinking water supplies to provide safe water in sufficient quantity to users. The most efficient way to accomplish this goal is to encourage and oversee source water protection on a local level. Many aspects of source water protection may be best addressed by engaging local stakeholders.

The intent of this document is to describe what Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has done, is currently doing, and plans to do to protect its source of drinking water. Although this water system treats the water to meet federal and state drinking water standards, conventional treatment does not fully eradicate all potential contaminants and treatment that goes beyond conventional methods is often very expensive. By completing this plan, Corporation Of Harpers Ferry acknowledges that implementing measures to minimize and mitigate contamination can be a relatively economical way to help ensure the safety of the drinking water.

1.1. WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF PREPARING A SOURCE WATER PROTECTION PLAN?

- Fulfilling the requirement for the public water utilities to complete or update their source water protection plan.
- Identifying and prioritizing potential threats to the source of drinking water; and establishing strategies to minimize the threats.
- Planning for emergency response to incidents that compromise the water supply by contamination or depletion, including how the public, state, and local agencies will be informed.
- Planning for future expansion and development, including establishing secondary sources of water.
- Ensuring conditions to provide the safest and highest quality drinking water to customers at the lowest possible cost.
- Providing more opportunities for funding to improve infrastructure, purchase land in the protection area, and other improvements to the intake or source water protection areas.

2.0 BACKGROUND: WV SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT AND PROTECTION PROGRAM

Since 1974, the federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) has set minimum standards on the construction, operation, and quality of water provided by public water systems. In 1986, Congress amended the SDWA. A portion of those amendments were designed to protect the source water contribution areas around ground water supply wells. This program eventually became known as the Wellhead Protection Program (WHPP). The purpose of the WHPP is to prevent pollution of the source water supplying the wells.

The Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 expanded the concept of wellhead protection to include surface water sources under the umbrella term of Source Water Protection. The amendments encourage states to establish SWAP programs to protect all public drinking water supplies. As part of this initiative states must explain how protection areas for each public water system will be delineated, how potential contaminant sources will be inventoried, and how susceptibility ratings will be established.

In 1999, the WVBPH published the West Virginia Source Water Assessment and Protection Program, which was endorsed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency. Over the next few years, WVBPH staff completed an assessment (i.e., delineation, inventory and susceptibility analysis) for all of West Virginia's public water systems. Each public water system was sent a copy of its assessment report. Information regarding assessment reports for Corporation Of Harpers Ferry can be found in **Table 1**.

3.0 STATE REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

On June 6, 2014, §16 1 2 and §16 1 9a of the Code of West Virginia, 1931,was reenacted and amended by adding three new sections, designated §16 1 9c, §16 1 9d and §16-1-9e. The changes to the code outlines specific requirements for public water utilities that draw water from a surface water source or a surface water influenced groundwater source.

Under the amended and new codes each existing public water utility using surface water or ground water influenced by surface water as a source must have completed or updated a source water protection plan by July 1, 2016, and must continue to update their plan every three years. Existing source water protection plans have been developed for many public water utilities in the past. If available, these plans were reviewed and considered in the development of this updated plan. Any new water system established after July 1, 2016 must submit a source water protection plan before they start to operate. A new plan is also required when there is a significant change in the potential sources of significant contamination (PSSC) within the zone of critical concern (ZCC).

The code also requires that public water utilities include details regarding PSSCs, protection measures, system capacities, contingency plans, and communication plans. Before a plan can be approved, the local health department and public will be invited to contribute information for consideration. In some instances, public water utilities may be asked to conduct independent studies of the source water protection area and specific threats to gain additional information.

4.0 SYSTEM INFORMATION

CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY is classified as a state regulated public utility and operates a community public water system. A community public water system is a system that regularly supplies drinking water from its own sources to at least 15 service connections used by year round residents of the area or regularly serves 25 or more people throughout the entire year. For purposes of this source water protection plan, community public water systems are also referred to as public water utilities. Information on the population served by this utility is presented in **Table 1** below.

Table 1. Population Served by CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY

Administrative office lo	ocation:	1435 Bakerton Rd, Harpers Ferry, JEFFERSON, WV, 25425			
Is the system a public Service Commission r	utility, according to the Public ule?	Yes			
Date of Most Recent Source Water Assessment Report:		3/1/2003			
Date of Most Recent Source Water Protection Plan:		5/1/2021			
Population served directly:		2122			
Bulk Water Purchaser Systems:	System Name		PWSID Number	Population	
Total Population Served by the Utility:		2122			
Does utility have multiple Source Water Protection Areas(SWPAs)?		Yes			
How many SWPAs do	es the utility have?	3			

5.0 WATER TREATMENT AND STORAGE

As required, Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has assessed their system (e.g., treatment capacity, storage capacity, unaccounted for water, contingency plans) to evaluate their ability to provide drinking water and protect public health. **Table 2** contains information on the water treatment methods and capacity of the utility.Information about the surface sources from which Corporation Of Harpers Ferry draws water can be found in **Table 3**. If the utility draws water from any groundwater sources to blend with the surface water the information about these ground water sources can be found in **Table 4**.

Table 2. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Water Treatment Information

Corporation of Harpers Ferry	
Water treatment processes (in order of occurrence) includes:	coagulation, flocculation, sedimentation, filtration, disinfection, fluoridation
The treatment capacity is approximately (GPD):	500,000
Current average production is approximately (GPD):	203,995
Maximum gallons of water treated and produced at that plant in one day during the past year was:	365,649
Minimum gallons of water treated and produced at that plant in one day during the past year was:	0
Plant is operated an average of hours a day:	10
Maximum number of hours of operation in one day at that plant during the past year was:	18
Minimum number of hours of operation in one day at that plant during the past year was:	0
How many storage tank(s) are maintained on systems distrbution system:	3
Total gallons of treated water storage:	991,000
Total gallons of raw water storage (GALs):	0

Table 3. Corporation	Of Harpers Fei	rry Surface Wate	r Sources
----------------------	----------------	------------------	-----------

Intake Name	Facility #	Local Name	Describe Intake	State Id Code	Date Constructed / Modified	Frequency of Use (Primary / Backup / Emergency)	Activity Status (Active/Inactive)
ELK RUN INTAKE	1940550	HARPER'S FERRY WATER WORKS PRIMARY	Above ground intake located in the Elk Run. Surface water and is located 150 feet from the railroad.	IN001		Permanent	Active
POTOMAC RIVER INTAKE	3491093	HARPER'S FERRY WATER WORKS BACKUP1	Submersible intake located in the Potomac River. It is located at the 1000 yards away from the river access.	IN002	1/1/1983	Emergency	Active

Table 4. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Ground Water Sources

Well/Spring Name	Facility #	Local Name	Date Constructed / Modified	Completion Report Available (Yes/No)	Well Depth (ft)	Casting Depth (ft)	Grout (Yes/No)	Frequency of Use (Primary / Backup / Emergency)	Activity Status (Active/Inactiv e)
TOWN SPRING	-	HARPER'S FERRY WATER WORKS BACKUP2	1/1/1937	No	0	0	None	Other	Active

6.0 DELINEATIONS

For surface water systems, delineation is the process used to identify and map the drainage basin that supplies water to a surface water intake. This area is generally referred to as the source water protection area (SWPA). All surface waters are susceptible to contamination because they are exposed at the surface and lack a protective barrier from contamination. Accidental spills, releases, sudden precipitation events that result in overland runoff, or storm sewer discharges can allow pollutants to readily enter the source water and potentially contaminate the drinking water at the intake. The SWPA for surface water is distinguished as a Watershed Delineation Area (WSDA) for planning purposes; and the Zone of Peripheral Concern (ZPC) and Zone of Critical Concern (ZCC) are defined for regulatory purposes.

The WSDA includes the entire watershed area upstream of the intake to the boundary of the State of West Virginia border, or a topographic boundary. The ZCC for a public surface water supply is a corridor along streams within the watershed that warrant more detailed scrutiny due to its proximity to the surface water intake and the intake's susceptibility to potential contaminants within that corridor. The ZCC is determined using a mathematical model that accounts for stream flows, gradient and area topography. The length of the ZCC is based on a five-hour time-of-travel of water in the streams to the water intake, plus an additional one-quarter mile below the water intake. The width of the zone of critical concern is 1,000 feet measured horizontally from each bank of the principal stream, and five hundred feet measured horizontally from each bank of the tributaries draining into the principal stream. Ohio River ZCC delineations are based on ORSANCO guidance and extend 25 miles above the intake. The Ohio River ZCC delineations include 1,320 feet (1/4 mile) measured from the bank of the main stem of the Ohio River and 500 feet on a tributary.

The ZPC for a public surface water supply source and for a public surface water influenced groundwater supply source is a corridor along streams within a watershed that warrants scrutiny due to its proximity to the surface water intake and the intake's susceptibility to potential contaminants within that corridor. The ZPC is determined using a mathematical model that accounts for stream flows, gradient and area topography. The length of the zone of peripheral concern is based on an additional five-hour time-of-travel of water in the streams beyond the perimeter of the zone of critical concern, which creates a protection zone of ten hours above the water intake. The width of the zone of peripheral concern is one thousand feet measured horizontally from each bank of the principal stream and five hundred feet measured horizontally from each bank of the principal stream.

For groundwater supplies there are two types of SWPA delineations: 1) wellhead delineations and 2) conjunctive delineations, which are developed for supplies identified as groundwater under the direct influence of surface water, or GWUDIs. A wellhead protection area is determined to be the area contributing to the recharge of the groundwater source (well or spring), within a five year time of travel. A conjunctive delineation combines a wellhead protection area for the hydrogeologic recharge and a connected surface area contributing to the wellhead.

Information and maps of the WSDA, ZCC, ZPC and Wellhead Protection Area for this public water supply were provided to the utility and are attached to this report. See **Appendix A. Figures**. Other information about the WSDA is shown in **Table 5**.

Table 5. Watershed Delineation Information

Well / Spring Name	Elk Run
Size of WSDA (Square Miles)	18
River Watershed Name (8-digit HUC)	Conococheague-Opequon - 02070004
Size of Zone of Critical Concern (Acres)	2573
Size of Zone of Peripheral Concern (Acres) (Include ZCC area)	0
Do you blend with ground water	Yes
Do you have an intake or well/spring missing from the list?	No
Well / Spring Name	Potomac River
Size of WSDA (Square Miles)	6305
River Watershed Name (8-digit HUC)	Conococheague-Opequon - 02070004
Size of Zone of Critical Concern (Acres)	10685
Size of Zone of Peripheral Concern (Acres) (Include ZCC area)	16075
Do you blend with ground water	Yes
Do you have an intake or well/spring missing from the list?	No
Well / Spring Name	TOWN SPRING
Method of Delineation for Groundwater Sources	Radius
Area of Wellhead Protection Area (Acres)	289
Size of WSDA (Square Miles)	0
River Watershed Name (8-digit HUC)	Conococheague-Opequon - 02070004
Size of Zone of Critical Concern (Acres)	0
Size of Zone of Peripheral Concern (Acres) (Include ZCC area)	0

7.0 PROTECTION TEAM

One important step in preparing a source water protection plan is to organize a source water protection team who will help develop and implement the plan. The legislative rule requires that water utilities make every effort to inform and engage the public, local government, local emergency planners, the local health department and affected residents at all levels of the development of the protection plan. WVBPH recommends that the water utility invite representatives from these organizations to join the protection team, which will ensure that they are given an opportunity to contribute in all aspects of source water protection plan development. Public water utilities should document their efforts to engage representatives and provide an explanation if any local stakeholder is unable to participate. In addition, other local stakeholders may be invited to participate on the team or contribute information to be considered. These individuals may be emergency response personnel, local decision makers, business and industry representatives, land owners (of land in the protection area), and additional concerned citizens.

The administrative contact for Corporation Of Harpers Ferry is responsible for assembling the protection team and ensuring that members are provided the opportunity to contribute to the development of the plan. The acting members of the Protection Team are listed in **Table 6**.

The role of the protection team members will be to contribute information to the development of the source water protection plan, review draft plans and make recommendations to ensure accuracy and completeness, and when possible contribute to implementation and maintenance of the protection plan. The protection team members are chosen as trusted representatives of the community served by the water utility and may be designated to access confidential data that contains details about the local PSSCs. The input of the protection team will be carefully considered by the water utility when making final decisions relative to the documentation and implementation of the source water protection plan.

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry will be responsible for updating the source water protection plan and rely upon input from the protection team and the public to better inform their decisions. To find out how you can become involved as a participant or contributor, visit the utility website or call the utility phone number, which are provided in **Table 6**.

May 2024

Page 10

Table 6. Protection Team M	lember and Contact Informatic	on		
Name .	Representing	Title	Phone Number	Email
Stephen Paradis	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	Public Works Administrator		
Chris Styer	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	Chief Operator		
Justin Jordan	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	District Engineer		
Michael Rock	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	Chairperson/Water Commisssioner		
Stephen Allen	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	Director		
Greg Vaughn	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	Mayor		
Chris Craig	Harpers Ferry Water Commission	Council		
Alana Hartman	WVDEP Watershed Improvement Branch	Environmental Resources Analyst		
Kristen Bisom	West Virginia Conservation Agency	Conservation Specialist		
John D Brown	Harpers Ferry Police Department	Chief of Police		
Jennifer M. Brockman*	Jefferson County Office of Planning and Zoning	County Planner		
Steve Stolipher	Jefferson County Commission	Commissioner, Harpers Ferry District	· · ·	
Autumn Crowe	West Virginia Rivers Coalition	Eastern Panhandle Field Coordinator		
Alan Marchun	RCAP	Technical Assistance Provider		
Maria Russo	WV Rivers Coalition	Clean Water Campaign Coordinator		
Date of First Protection Team Me	eting:	Protection Team Meeting was he minutes attached in Appendix E.	ld Friday, March 18, 2016 at Corpo	ration Of Harpers Ferry. Meeting

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry

Source Water Protection Plan

Efforts made to inform and engage local stakeholders (public, local government, local emergency planners, local health department, and affected residents) and explain absence of recommended stakeholders	Core members of the team are all individuals that have been working with the Water Works separately, but within the capacity they represent on the collective team. Similarly, with the exception of the Jefferson County Commission representative, all additional Protection Team members have participated in Safe Water Harpers Ferry / Elks Run Watershed Group that meets regularly to discuss matters pertaining to the health and protection of the Elks Run Watershed. Initial PUBLIC MEETING conducted May 15, 2024 HARPERS FERRY TOWN HALL - attendees included all current Harpers Ferry Water Commission members, Deb Kelly (HF Financial Officer), Steve Paradis (HF Public Works Administrator), Time Wisecarver (HF Planning Commission), Maria Russo, Alan Marchun, Monica Whyte Protection Team Meeting TBD (June 2024 anticipated)
---	--

8.0 POTENTIAL SOURCES OF SIGNIFICANT CONTAMINATION

Source water protection plans should provide a complete and comprehensive list of the PSSCs contained within the ZCC, based upon information obtained from the WVBPH, working in cooperation with the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection (WVDEP) and the West Virginia Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (WVDHSEM). A facility or activity is listed as a PSSC if it has the potential to release a contaminant that could potentially impact a nearby public water supply, and it does not necessarily indicate that any release has occurred.

The list of PSSCs located in the SWPA is organized into two types: 1) SWAP PSSCs, and 2) Regulated Data. SWAP PSSCs are those that have been collected and verified by the WVBPH SWAP program during previous field investigations to form source water assessment reports and source water protection plans. Regulated PSSCs are derived from federal and state regulated databases, and may include data from WVDEP, US Environmental Protection Agency, WVDHSEM, and from state data sources.

8.1. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PSSCS

A list of the PSSCs contained within the ZCC should be included in the source water protection plan. In the event of a chemical spill, release or other related emergency, information pertaining to the contaminant shall be immediately disseminated to any emergency responders reporting to the site. The designees for Corporation Of Harpers Ferry are identified in the communication planning section of the source water protection plan.

PSSC data from some agencies (ex. WVDHSEM, WVDEP, etc.) may be restricted due to the sensitive nature of the data. Locational data will be provided to the public water utility. However, to obtain specific details regarding contaminants, (such as information included in Tier II reports), water utilities should contact the local emergency planning commission (LEPC) or agencies, directly. While the maps and lists of the PSSCs and regulated sites are to be maintained in a confidential manner, these data are provided in **Appendix A. Figures** for internal review and planning uses only.

8.2. LOCAL AND REGIONAL PSSCS

For the purposes of this source water protection plan, local PSSCs are those that are identified by local stakeholders in addition to the PSSCs lists distributed by the WVBPH and other agencies. Local stakeholders may identify local PSSCs for two main reasons. The first is that it is possible that threats exist from unregulated sources and land uses that have not already been inventoried and do not appear in regulated databases. For this reason each public water utility should investigate their protection area for local PSSCs. A PSSC inventory should identify all contaminant sources and land uses in the delineated ZCC. The second reason local PSSCs are identified is because public water utilities may consider expanding the PSSC inventory effort outside of the ZCC into the ZPC and WSDA if necessary to properly identify all threats that could impact the drinking water source. As the utility considers threats in the watershed they may consider collaborating with upstream communities to identify and manage regional PSSCs.

When conducting local and regional PSSC inventories, utilities should consider that some sources may be obvious like above ground storage tanks, landfills, livestock confinement areas, highway or railroad right of ways, and sewage treatment facilities. Others are harder to locate like abandoned cesspools, underground tanks, French

drains, dry wells, or old dumps and mines.

The Corporation Of Harpers Ferry reviewed intake locations and the delineated SWPAs to verify the existence of PSSCs provided by the WVBPH and identify new PSSCs. If possible, locations of regulated sites within the SWPA were confirmed. Information on any new or updated PSSCs identified by Corporation Of Harpers Ferry and not already appearing in datasets from the WVBPH can be found in .**Table 7**.

Table 7. Locally Identified potential Sources of Significant Contamination

Please see Appendix A to view this information.

8.3. PRIORITIZATION OF THREATS AND MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

Once the utility has identified local concerns, they must develop a management plan that identifies specific activities that will be pursued by the public water utility in cooperation and concert with the WVBPH, local health departments, local emergency responders, LEPC and other agencies and organizations to protect the source water from contamination threats.

Depending on the number identified, it may not be feasible to develop management strategies for all of the PSSCs in the SWPA. The identified PSSCs can be prioritized by potential threat to water quality, proximity to the intake(s), and local concern. The highest priority PSSCs can be addressed first in the initial management plan. Lower ranked PSSCs can be addressed in the future as time and resources allow. To assess the threat to the source water, water systems should consider confidential information about each PSSC. This information may be obtained from state or local emergency planning agencies, Tier II reports, facility owner, facility groundwater protection plans, spill prevention response plans, results of field investigations, etc.

In addition to identifying and prioritizing PSSCs within the SWPA, local source water concerns may also focus on critical areas. For the purposes of this source water protection plan, a critical area is defined as an area that is identified by local stakeholders and can lie within or outside of the ZCC. Critical areas may contain one or more PSSCs which would require immediate response to address a potential incident that could impact the source water.

A list of these priority PSSCs was selected and ranked by the Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Protection Team. This list reflects the concerns of this specific utility and may contain PSSCs not previously identified and not within the ZCC or ZPC. **Table 8** contains a description of why each critical area or PSSC is considered a threat and what management strategies the utility is either currently using or could use in the future to address each threat.

9.0 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry reviewed the recommended strategies listed in their previous source water protection plan, to consider if any of them should be adopted and incorporated in this updated plan. **Table 9** provides a brief statement summarizing the status of the recommended strategies. **Table 9** also lists strategies from a previous plan that are being incorporated in this plan update.

When considering source management strategies and education and outreach strategies, this utility has considered how and when the strategies will be implemented. The initial step in implementation is to establish responsible parties and timelines to implement the strategies. The water utility, working in conjunction with the Protection Team members, can determine the best process for completing activities within the projected time periods. Additional meetings may be needed during the initial effort to complete activities, after which the Protection Team should consider meeting annually to review and update the Source Water Protection Plan. A system of regular updates should be included in every implementation plan.

Proposed commitments and schedules may change but should be well documented and reported to the local stakeholders. If possible, utilities should include cost estimates for strategies to better plan for implementation and possible funding opportunities. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has developed an implementation plan for priority concerns listed in **Table 8**. The responsible team member, timeline, and potential cost of each strategy are presented in **Table 9**. Note: Because timelines may change, future plan updates should describe the status of each strategy and explain the lack of progress.

Table 8. Priority PSSCs or Critical Areas

PSSC or Critical Area	Priority Number	Reason for Concern
CSX and Norfolk Southern Railroads	1	Railroads present a potential threat to surface water and shallow karst aquifers due to the possibility of spills and train derailments. A CSX Railroad runs through the ZCC along Elk Branch for approximately 5.4 miles and passes the water treatment plant in close proximity. A railway owned and operated by Norfolk Southern also runs through the headwater areas of both Elk Branch and Elks Run. A direct spill into Elk Branch would take less than 5 hours to reach the Water Treatment Plant.
Agricultural Activities	2	As a result of agricultural and pastoral land uses in the area, nutrient levels can become elevated in surrounding surface water bodies and/or the underlying groundwater system. Such activities may also introduce bacteriologicals and sediment to local waterways.
Commercial & Industrial Activities	3	These facilities pose a threat due to the potential for accidental leaks, spills, improper disposal of industrial chemicals, by-products and other wastes, or improperly managed stormwater runoff. With the recent addition of large heavy industry adjacent to the ZCC, contributions from these facilities are now more likely than in the past. Harpers Ferry does not have the capability to treat for some contaminants that may originate from these sites. Additional industrial facilities are located within the watershed, but outside of the ZCC, and are concentrated at the Burr Industrial Park. The Burr Industrial Park overlies the most upgradient portion of the recharge area contributing to the Elks Run Watershed.
New Subdivisions	4	general demand for water resources within the watershed; Elk Run capacity appears to be diminishing over time
Septic Systems & Public Sewer	5	The status of some older septic systems is unknown and failures and leaks are possible. Unlike other areas, in karst terrain a septic tends to fail downwards and can therefore be virtually undetectable. Where feasible, public sewer expansion is more favorable, but sinkhole monitoring and leak detection are encouraged. BATs and pre-treatment are encouraged for new septic systems that come to be built in the watershed, particularly in the SWPA.
General Watershed	6	n/a
Previous Plan Status	7	n/a

Table 9. Priority PSSC Management Strategies

PSSC or Critical Area	Management Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
New Subdivisions	The Harpers Ferry Protection Team is	Harpers Ferry	Ongoing		Staff time pursuing

Table 9. Priority PSSC Management Strategies

PSSC or Critical Area	Management Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
	working with the Jefferson County Planning Department to discuss the concept of providing education for open-space preservation and open-space conservation subdivision planning. Outside of educational awareness, the Harpers Ferry Protection Team will also inquire as to whether or not local ordinances can be revised to protect or rehabilitate riparian zones impacted by development. Stormwater management requirements will also be reviewed and discussed to determine if better management strategies can be incorporated into subdivision designs through regulations. Should revised ordinances and regulations prove infeasible, the Harpers Ferry Protection Team also plans to discuss an economic incentive program whereby land developers who utilize BMPs to reduce stormwater runoff receive economic credits, whereas those who do not or exceed a percent impervious surface pay a fee that can be used to fund watershed restoration efforts elsewhere in the watershed. These strategies will be discussed with the Jefferson County Commission. County growth plans should take into consideration overall water availability for county and affected municipalities (Harpers Ferry and Bolivar).	Protection Team			this possibility; otherwise dependent on future agreements.

PSSC or Critical Area	Management Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
New Subdivisions	engage with Jefferson County Commission's Water Advisory Committee	Water Commission representative	Not Started	Water Advisory Committee appears to be in suspended status. HFWW interests in Elks Run / Elks Branch should be represented in county-wide water resource planning.	
General Watershed	The utility will participate actively in the Potomac River Basin Drinking Water Source Protection Partnership, which is composed of multiple state agencies and other water systems that use the Potomac River as a primary source, to discuss membership opportunities. The Protection Partnership works together to target key contaminants concerns of point and non-point source origin, and to raise educational awareness via public outreach measures.	Steve Paradis, HF Public Works Administrator; Mike Rock, Harpers Ferry Water Commission (HFWC)	Ongoing		Staff time for attended meetings and email correspondence; membership dues.
Previous Plan Status	There were seven management strategies recommended in the former plan. All have been undertaken to varying degrees. All seven of these are ongoing or continue to be a concern. The order of priority has shifted given industrial and residential growth throughout the county. These are incorporated in this plan update and are provided in Appendix E-3.	Harpers Ferry Water Commission	Ongoing	Comments regarding implementation of management activities can be found in the previous SWPP, which is included in Appendix E-3.	Staff time, except for sewer expansion, which included engineering and equipment costs.

Table 9.	Priority	PSSC	Management	Strategies
----------	----------	------	------------	------------

PSSC or Critical Area	Management Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
Agricultural Activities	Harpers Ferry Water Works and the West Virginia Conservation Agency will work with the County Extension Service, the Soil and Water Conservation District, and/or Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) to encourage agricultural land owners to participate in nutrient management planning, forest conservation, land retirement and management programs (including riparian zone preservation or restoration) within the SWPA. Efforts will primarily focus on education and outreach measures, though the WVCA also promotes cost-sharing programs to provide cattle fencing, etc.	Mike Rock (HFWC) and Kristen Bisom (WVCA)	Ongoing	This includes in participating in the WV Safe Water Collaborative, coordinated by WV Rivers Coalition to accelerate land conservation and source water protection areas.	Staff time and time/grant funding from the WVCA.
Septic Systems & Public Sewer	The Harpers Ferry Protection Team is working with the Jefferson County Planning Department (and Health Department) to explore the possibility of requiring Best Available Technologies (BATs) for new septic systems that will be installed within the ZCC delineated by the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health. Discussions will focus on whether or not local ordinances could require the use of BAT's in the ZCC.	Harpers Ferry Protection Team	Ongoing		Staff time pursuing this possibility; otherwise dependent on future agreements.

Table 9. Priority PSSC Management Strategies

PSSC or Critical Area	Management Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
CSX and Norfolk Southern Railroads	Harpers Ferry Water Works and Harpers Ferry Police Department personnel will contact Jefferson County OHSEM and LEPC coordinators to discuss utilizing the training materials provided by CSX railways (i.e., planning guides and in-person/on-site trainings, featuring a safety rail car) across the County. Discussions will help ensure that OHSEM and emergency responders will have access to the CSX Rail Respond program, which provides easy mobile access to critical information about what's traveling on CSX rails. Information regarding these programs is provided in Appendix E-7. Discussions may also focus on performing routine Emergency Response drills for Highway and Railroad spills. Stockpiling spill response equipment in key locations proximal to water utilities will also be discussed. Harpers Ferry Water Works will work with WV DEP or BPH,along with OHSEM, and the railroad companies to discuss safety measures, emergency plans and inspection routine(s).	Chris Styer (HFWW) and Chief Brown (Harpers Ferry Police Department)	Ongoing		Staff time involving members from Harpers Ferry Water Works, DOT, OHSEM, other LEPC agencies and BPH and/or WV DEP. Staff time at the LEPC level, and for members of local emergency response stations (e.g., local fire department, police department, etc.).
CSX and Norfolk Southern Railroads	propose a rail incident to Jefferson County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Management for inclusion in the State Table Top Exercise (TTX) and Functional Exercise (FX) scheduled for June 25, 2024 at the Hope Church in Augusta, WV; participate in exercise if proposal is accepted	Steve Paradis	Ongoing		staff time and travel expense to exercise

Table 9. Priority PSSC Management Strategies	Table 9.	Priority	PSSC	Management	Strategies
--	----------	----------	------	------------	------------

PSSC or Critical Area	Management Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
Commercial & Industrial Activities	Harpers Ferry Water Works will distribute site-specific Best Management Practice lists, along with advanced hazardous materials containment options, to commercial facilities within the ZCC on an as-needed basis. Consideration may also be given to providing similar information to commercial and industrial business owners outside the ZCC, but within the watershed. HFWW will familiarize itself with industrial facilities' DEP permitting and monitoring.	Harpers Ferry Water Works and Mike Rock, Chairperson Harpers Ferry Water Commission	Ongoing		Staff time compiling materials and cost of postage.

10.0 EDUCATION AND OUTREACH STRATEGIES

The goal of education and outreach is to raise awareness of the need to protect drinking water supplies and build support for implementation strategies. Education and outreach activities will also ensure that affected citizens and other local stakeholders are kept informed and provided an opportunity to contribute to the development of the source water protection plan. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has created an Education and Outreach plan that describes activities it has either already implemented or could implement in the future to keep the local community involved in protecting their source of drinking water. This information can be found in **Table 10**.

Table 10.	Education a	and Outreach	Implementation	Plan
-----------	-------------	--------------	----------------	------

Education and Outreach Strategy	Description of Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
County Fair and Festivals	Consider providing information on source water protection for the County Health Department's booth at the county fair or local festivals, should they have any.	Elks Run Watershed Group and Safe Water Harpers Ferry	Ongoing		costs for graphic design and printing of literature
Emergency Planning and Coordination	Participate with local fire departments and County Emergency Services on a regular basis. This will ensure that all the agencies understand the boundaries of the SWPA, are in constant communication with one another, and are prepared in the event of an emergency. Participate in county and regional Disaster Emergency Response exercises, proposing Elk Run disaster simulations.	HFWW staff	Not Started		
Continue Membership in Potomac Drinking Water Source Protection Partnership	Harpers Ferry Water Works is a member of the PRB DWSPP (Potomac River Basin Drinking Water Source Protection Partnership), which is an interstate program that provides SWP education and outreach opportunities, among various other services oriented towards protecting and improving the quality of water for the Potomac River. While the Potomac River Intake is only a backup source for Harpers Ferry, Elks Run (the primary source for Harpers Ferry) is still within the Potomac River Watershed and it discharges to the Potomac River. HFWW will continue to participate actively in this organization.	Steve Paradis, Mike Rock	Ongoing		Staff time and membership fees
Clean Up Events	Coordinate with local cleanup efforts and publicize projects. Work closely with Watershed Associations in this regard.	Kristen Bisom (WVCA) & Harpers Ferry Water Works	Ongoing		Volunteer and staff time, otherwise, project dependent for cost of materials.

Table 10.	Education and	Outreach In	nplementation	Plan
-----------	---------------	-------------	---------------	------

Education and Outreach Strategy	Description of Activity	Responsible Protection Team Member	Status / Schedule	Comments	Estimated Cost
Display Information	Include informational materials (i.e., brochures, maps, etc.) in county government offices and other public places (i.e., local fairs). Host nonconfidential SWPP online for public review and comment. Work with DOT for protection area sign expansion/coverage.	Harpers Ferry Water Commission	Ongoing		Staff time associated with getting permission from County entities, staff time and cost associated with printing materials.
Early Education	Work with area schools to include source water protection information into the curriculum, or present information at assemblies or in classroom events (e.g., environmental science class).	Laurel Schwartz (PVAS); Kristen Bisom (West Virginia Conservation Agency)	Ongoing	The West Virginia Conservation Agency runs a macroinvertebrate analysis program (in the Elks Run Watershed) with local middle school students. WVCA also hosts workshops and improvement projects throughout the watershed.	
BMP lists	Distribute lists of industry specific BMPs to the owners of (1) Car Repair Shops and (2) Agricultural Lands/Facilities within the SWPA (Future Farmers, etc.). Provide SWPP education materials. Additional areas outside the ZCC but within the Elks Run Watershed may also be considered.	Harpers Ferry Protection Team	Ongoing		Staff time and fees associated with mailing information

11.0 CONTINGENCY PLAN

The goal of contingency planning is to identify and document how the utility will prepare for and respond to any drinking water shortages or emergencies that may occur due to short and long term water interruption, or incidents of spill or contamination. During contingency planning, utilities should examine their capacity to protect their intake, treatment, and distribution system from contamination. They should also review their ability to use alternative sources and minimize water loss, as well as their ability to operate during power outages. In addition, utilities should report the feasibility of establishing an early warning monitoring system and meeting future water demands.

Isolating or diverting any possible contaminant from the intake for a public water system is an important strategy in the event of an emergency. One commonly used method of diverting contaminants from an intake is establishing booms around the intake. This can be effective, but only for contaminants that float on the surface of the water. Alternatively, utilities can choose to pump floating contaminants from the water or chemically neutralize the contaminant before it enters the treatment facility.

Public utilities using surface sources should be able to close the intake by one means or another. However, depending upon the system, methods for doing so could vary greatly and include closing valves, lowering hatches or gates, raising the intake piping out of the water, or shutting down pumps. Systems should have plans in place in advance as to the best method to protect the intake and treatment facility. Utilities may benefit from turning off pumps and, if possible, closing the intake opening to prevent contaminants from entering the piping leading to the pumps. Utilities should also have a plan in place to sample raw water to identify the movement of a contaminant plume and allow for maximum pumping time before shutting down an intake (See Early Warning Monitoring System). The amount of time that an intake can remain closed depends on the water infrastructure and should be determined by the utility before an emergency occurs. The longer an intake can remain closed in such a case, the better.

Raw and treated water storage capacity also becomes extremely important in the event of such an emergency. Storage capacity can directly determine how effectively a water system can respond to a contamination event and how long an intake can remain closed. Information regarding the water shortage response capability of Corporation Of Harpers Ferry is provided in **Table 11**.

11.1. RESPONSE NETWORKS AND COMMUNICATION

PSSC data from some agencies (ex. WVDHSEM, WVDEP, etc.) may be restricted due to the sensitive nature of the data. Locational data will be provided to the public water utility. However, to obtain specific details regarding contaminants, (such as information included in Tier II reports), water utilities should contact the local emergency planning commission (LEPC) or agencies, directly. While the maps and lists of the PSSCs and regulated sites are to be maintained in a confidential manner, these data are provided in **Appendix A. Figures** for internal review and planning uses only.

Table 11. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry Water Shortage Response Capacity

Can the water utility isolate or divert contamination from the intake and groundwater supply?	No		
Describe the results of an examination and analysis of the public water system's ability to isolate or divert contaminated waters from its surface water intake or groundwater supply:	The utility does not have the ability to isolate or divert potential contaminants that may impact the Town Spring, which currently supplements flow in Elks Run. Likewise, should Elks Run become contaminated, the source would become unusable until such an event was remediated or passed the intake. In either of these circumstances, Harpers Ferry would close the Elks Run Intake and use their backup Potomac River Intake instead.		
Describe the results of an examination and analysis of the public water system's existing ability to switch to an alternative water source or intake in the event of contamination of its primary water source:	The Utility has the capability of switching to an alternate water source through surface withdraw from the Potomac River. The utility would manually close the valve between the Elks Run intake and the Elks Run wet well, open the valve between the Potomac River intake and the Potomac River wet well and turn on the pump serving the Potomac River intake.		
Is the Utility able to close the water intake in the event of a spill?	Yes		
How long can the Utility keep the intake closed?	Indefinitely		
Describe the process to close the intake:	The utility would manually turn off the pump from the wet well to the sedimentation basin and close the valve between the intake and the wet well. The utility has 3 days of finished water storage, as well as a backup intake on the		
	Potomac River, the capacity of which significantly surpasses system demands.		
Describe the treated water system's storage capacity of the water system:	Single tank farm with three water tanks: Tank #1: 241,000 Gallons Tank #2: 250,000 Gallons Tank #3: 500,000 Gallons Total storage tank capacity: 991,000. Historically, the plant has operated with the level of these tanks between 70% and 94% full with median level of 80%. Conservatively, utility plans on having 70% of total tank capacity on hand.		
Gallons of storage capacity (raw water)	0		
Gallons of storage capacity (treated water)	694,000		
Is the Utility a member of WVRWA Emergency Response Team?:	Yes		
Is the Utility a member of WV-WARN?:	No		
List other agreements to provide receive assistance in case of emergency:	Harpers Ferry has a verbal agreement to provide and receive assistance to/from the National Park Service in the event that their lands are directly affected.,Jefferson County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Management		

11.2. OPERATION DURING LOSS OF POWER

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry analyzed its ability to operate effectively during a loss of power. This involved ensuring a means to supply water through treatment, storage, and distribution without creating a public health emergency. Information regarding the utility's capacity for operation during power outages is summarized in **Table 12**.

Table 12. Generator Capacity

Can you connect to a generator intake/wellhead?:	at the	Yes			
Please provide a scenario that b system:	est describes yo	There is a permanent generator onsite at the WTP to power the plant and Elk Run raw water pumps. The Potomac River raw water pumps cannot operate from this generator.			
What do you have (KW)?			200.00		
What do you need (KW)?					
Can you connect to a generator at the treatment facility?:			Yes		
Please provide a scenario that best describes your system:			see above		
What do you have (KW)?			200.00		
What do you need (KW)?					
Can you connect to a generator at the distribution system?:			No		
Please provide a scenario that best describes your system:					
What do you have (KW)?					
What do you need (KW)?					
Does the utility have fuel on han	d for generator?:		Yes		
Hours:			59		
Gallons:			914		
Provide a list of suppliers and		Supplier		Phone Number	
provide fuel in the event of an emergency:	Fuel	Griffith Energy		(301)663-3111	
Does the utility test the generator(s) periodically?:			Yes		
Does the utility routinely maintain the generator(s)?:			Yes		
If the Utility does not have generator or the ability to connect to a generator, describe plans to respond to power outages:					

11.3. FUTURE WATER SUPPLY NEEDS

When planning for potential emergencies and developing contingency plans, a utility needs to not only consider their current demands for treated water but also account for likely future needs. This could mean expanding current intake sources or developing new ones in the near future. This can be an expensive and time consuming process, and any water utility should take this into account when determining emergency preparedness. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has analyzed its ability to meet future water demands at current capacity, and this information is included in **Table 13**

Table 13. Future Water Supply Needs for Corporation Of Harpers Ferry

Is the Utility able to meet water demands with the current capacity for the next five years?	Yes
Explain how you plan to do so:	Plant is currently operating at less than 50% total capacity. The only significant growth anticipated for the next five years will be the old Hilltop House hotel, approximately 0.5 MG per month or 17,000 GPD or approximately 1 additional hour per day plant operation time.

11.4. WATER LOSS CALCULATION

In any public water system there is a certain percentage of the total treated water that does not reach the customer. Some of this water is used in treatment plant processes such as back washing filters or flushing piping, but there is usually at least a small percentage that goes unaccounted for. To measure and report on this unaccounted for water, a public utility must use the method described in the Public Service Commission's rule, Rules for the Government of Water Utilities, 150CSR7, section 5.6. The rule defines unaccounted for water as the volume of water introduced into the distribution system less all metered usage and all known non-metered usage which can be estimated with reasonable accuracy.

To further clarify, metered usages are most often those that are distributed to customers. Non-metered usages that are being estimated include usage by fire departments for fires or training, un-metered bulk sells, flushing to maintain the distribution system, and water used for backwashing filters and cleaning settling basins. By totaling the known metered and non-metered uses the utility calculates unaccounted for water. Note: To complete annual reports submitted to the PSC, utilities typically account for known water main breaks by estimating the amount of water lost. However, for the purposes of the source water protection plan, any water lost due to leaks, even if the system is aware of how much water is lost at a main break, is not considered a use. Water lost through leaks and main breaks cannot be controlled during a water shortages or other emergencies and should be included in the calculation of percentage of water loss for purposes of the source water protection plan. The data in **Table 13** is taken from the most recently submitted Corporation Of Harpers Ferry PSC Annual Report.

Water pumped - Total Gallons:	77,253,000	
*Water purchased - Total Gallons:	0	
Total gallons of water pumped and purcha	77,253,000	
Total gallons of water loss accounted for except main leaks:	Mains, plaint, filters, flushing, etc - Total Gallons:	2,225,000
	Fire department - Total Gallons:	422,000
	Back washing - Total Gallons:	98,000
	Blowing settling basins - Total Gallons:	0
Total Accounted for Water Loss	2,745,000	
Unaccounted for lost water - Total Gallons	22,938,000	
Water sold - Gallons:	38,320,000	
Water Lost From Main Leaks:	13,250,000	
Total Gallons of Unaccounted for Lost Wa	36,188,000	
Total percent unaccounted for water	47	

Table 14. Water Loss Information
Describe the measures to correct water loss greater than 15%:	The Harpers Ferry Water Works repairs leaks as they present. It is actively exploring the implementation of an acoustics-based leak detection program, either through a mobile array of sensors or a fixed array attached to new water meters. Our aging system requires constant repairs. Some of the infrastructure is almost 100 years old. We have engineered drawings for a major distribution system upgrade and have secured a grant administered through WDA to complete approximately one third of this work. This funded project will refurbish tanks, replace a failing pressure reducing valve, and replace approximately 9,000 feet of mains across the system. Completion is expected early FY 2025 with anticipated water loss reduction to within the 15 - 20% water loss. Additional targeted measures will work to reduce loss further while funding sources will be explored to complete the remainder of the required distribution system upgrades necessary to get below the WVPSC water loss acceptable level.
--	--

11.5. EARLY WARNING MONITORING SYSTEM

Public water utilities are required to provide an examination of the technical and economic feasibility of implementing an early warning monitoring system may be approached in different ways depending upon the water utility's resources and threats to the source water. A utility may install a continuous monitoring system that will provide real time information regarding water quality conditions. This would require utilities to analyze the data to establish what condition is indicative of a contamination event. Continuous monitoring will provide results for a predetermined set of parameters. The more parameters that are being monitored, the more sophisticated the monitoring equipment will need to be. When establishing a continuous monitoring system, the utility should consider the logistics of placing and maintaining the equipment, and receiving output data from the equipment.

Alternately, or in addition, a utility may also pull periodic grab samples on a regular basis, or in case of a reported incident. The grab samples may be analyzed for specific contaminants. A utility should examine their PSSCs to determine what chemical contaminants could pose a threat to the water source. If possible, the utility should plan in advance how those contaminants will be detected. Consideration should be given to where samples will be collected, the preservations and hold times for samples, available laboratories to analyze samples, and costs associated with the sampling event. Regardless of the type of monitoring (continuous or grab), utilities should collect samples for their source throughout the year to better understand the baseline water quality conditions and natural seasonal fluctuations. Establishing a baseline will help determine if changes in the water quality are indicative of a contamination event and inform the needed response.

Every utility should establish a system or process for receiving or detecting chemical threats with sufficient time to respond to protect the treatment facility and public health. All approaches to receiving and responding to an early warning should incorporate communication with facility owners and operators that pose a threat to the water quality, with state and local emergency response agencies, with surrounding water utilities, and with the public. Communication plays an important role in knowing how to interpret data and how to respond.

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has analyzed its ability to monitor for and detect potential contaminants that could impact its source water. Information regarding this utility's early warning monitoring system capabilities is provided in **Table 15** and in **Appendix B**.

Table 15. Early Warning Monitoring System Capabilities

Does your system currently from a state agency, neighb emergency responders, or c	receive spill notificati oring water system, l ther facilities?	ons ocal	Yes	
From whom do you receive	notices?		Yes; notifications are re- Department of Environm and Police Stations. The Human Resources Bureau for P emails regarding spills reported	ceived from the West Virginia nental Protection and Local Fire Department of Health and ublic Health also sends out I throughout the County.
Are you aware of any facilition areas within your protection contaminants could be relea	es, land uses, or critic areas where chemic ased or spilled?	cal al	Yes	
Are you prepared to detect protified of a spill?	potential contaminant	ts if	Yes	
List laboratories (and contac	ct information) on	Labora	tories	
in case of a reported spill.	lyze water samples	Name		Phone Number
		WV BP Enviror	H – Bardane District Imental Laboratory	(304)725-5832
		PACE	Lab (Beaver, WV)	(304)255-2500
		Frederi	cktowne Lab	(301)293-3340
Do you have an understand conditions for your source w seasonal fluctuations?	ing of baseline or nor ater uality that accou	rmal ints for	Yes	
Does your utility (aside from currently monitor your raw w monitoring at the surface wa source to detect changes in indicate contamination?	turbidity monitoring) vater through continu ater intake or groundy water quality that co	ous vater uld	Yes	
Does your utility collect period possess reserved sample be services, and trained persor notification or to investigate that could indicate contamin	odic grab samples (e ottles, on-call laborat nnel) in response to a changes in water qua ation?	x. ory ı spill ality	Yes	
Please explain:			Yes; turbidity is continue pH and temperature measu Alkalinity, hardness and recorded on a daily basi periodic raw water samp We also typically have s bottles for PACE lab and Fredericktowne Labs du	pusly monitored and recorded. rements are performed daily. fluoride are also measured and s. We plan to begin collecting bles for bacteriological analyses. pare chemical analyses sample d can also contact ring emergency.
Provide or estimate the	Capital Cost:		0	
early warning system or upgraded system.	O&M Cost:		5,000	
Do you serve more than 100),000 customers?		No	
Does your system currently from a state agency, neighb emergency responders, or c	receive spill notificati oring water system, l ther facilities?	ions ocal	Yes	
Are you prepared to detect protified of a spill?	potential contaminant	ts if	Yes	
Please describe the method same technical levels utilize	s you use to monbito d by ORSANCO:	or at the		

12.0 SINGLE SOURCE FEASIBILITY STUDY

If a public water utility's water supply plant is served by a single–source intake to a surface water source of supply or a surface water influenced source of supply, the submitted source water protection plan must also include an examination and analysis of the technical and economic feasibility of alternative sources of water to provide continued safe and reliable public water service in the event that its primary source of supply is detrimentally affected by contamination, release, spill event or other reason. These alternatives may include a secondary intake, two days of additional raw or treated water storage, an interconnection with neighboring systems, or other options identified on a local level. Note: a suitable secondary intake would draw water supplies from a substantially different location or water source.

To accomplish this requirement, utilities should examine all existing or possible alternatives and rank them by their technical, economic, and environmental feasibility. To have a consistent and complete method for ranking alternatives, WVBPH has developed a feasibility study guide. This guide provides several criteria to consider for each category, organized in a Feasibility Study Matrix. By completing the Feasibility Study Matrix, utilities will demonstrate the process used to examine the feasibility of each alternative and document scores that compare the alternatives. The Feasibility Study matrix and summary of the results are presented in an alternatives feasibility study attached as **Appendix D**.

13.0 COMMUNICATION PLAN

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry has also developed a Communication Plan that documents the manner in which the public water utility, working in concert with state and local emergency response agencies, shall notify the local health agencies and the public of the initial spill or contamination event and provide updated information related to any contamination or impairment of the system's drinking water supply. The initial notification to the public will occur in any event no later than thirty minutes after the public water system becomes aware of the spill, release, or potential contamination of the public water system. A copy of the source water protection plan and the Communication Plan has been provided to the local fire department. Corporation Of Harpers Ferry will update the Communication Plan as needed to ensure contact information is up to date.

Procedures should be in place to effectively react to the kinds of catastrophic spills that can reasonably be predicted at the source location or within the SWPA. The chain-of-command, notification procedures and response actions should be known by all water system employees.

The WVBPH has developed a recommended communication plan template that provides a tiered incident communication process to provide a universal system of alert levels to utilities and water system managers. The comprehensive Communication Plan for Corporation Of Harpers Ferry is attached as **Appendix C** for internal review and planning purposes only.

The West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection is capable of providing expertise and assistance related to prevention, containment, and clean-up of chemical spills. The West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection Emergency Response 24-hour Phone is 1-800-642-3074. The West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection also operates an upstream distance estimator that can be used to determine the distance from a spill site to the closest public water supply surface water intake.

14.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE

A public water utility must be prepared for any number of emergency scenarios and events that would require immediate response. It is imperative that information about key contacts, emergency services, and downstream water systems be posted and readily available in the event of an emergency. Elements of this source water protection plan, such as the contingency planning and communication plan, may contain similar information to the utility's emergency response plan. However, the emergency response plan is to be kept confidential and is not included in this source water protection plan. An Emergency Short Form is included in **Appendix C** to support the Communicate Plan by providing quick access to important information about emergency response and are to be used for internal review and planning purposes only.

15.0 CONCLUSION

This report represents a detailed explanation of the required elements of Corporation Of Harpers Ferry's Source Water Protection Plan. Any supporting documentation or other materials that the utility considers relevant to their plan can be found in **Appendix E**.

This source water protection plan is intended to help prepare community public water systems all over West Virginia to properly handle any emergencies that might compromise the quality of the system's source water supply. It is imperative that this plan is updated as often as necessary to reflect the changing circumstances within the water system. The protection team should continue to meet regularly and continue to engage the public whenever possible. Communities taking local responsibility for the quality of their source water is the most effective way to prevent contamination and protect a water system against contaminated drinking water. Community cooperation, sufficient preparation, and accurate monitoring are all critical components of this source water protection plan, and a multi-faceted approach is the only way to ensure that a system is as protected as possible against source water degradation.

APPENDIX A. FIGURES AND TABLES

Water Source / Delineation

Surface Water Sources Intake: Elk Run Map of watershed delineation area





Map of zone of critical Concerns



Map of watershed delineation area



Map of zone of critical Concerns



Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

Map of zone of peripheral Concerns



Ground Water Sources Intake: SP001 Map of wellhead protection



PSSC Maps

Local and Regional PSSC Map



- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit
- ★ PSSC Query: NPDES Permit Outlet PSSC Query: Source Water Protection PSSC
- Agriculture

- Residential
- WHPA Query: Well Head Protection Area
- PWS Query: Zone of Critical Concern
 - State_WV

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community



- ۸
- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit *
- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit Outlet PSSC Query: Source Water Protection PSSC

٠

Residential

State_WV



Regulated PSSC Map



- PSSC Query: Resource Conservation Recovery Act
- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit *
- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit Outlet PSSC Query: Source Water Protection PSSC
 - ٠ Agriculture

- Municipal
- Residential
- WHPA Query: Well Head Protection Area
- PWS Query: Zone of Critical Concern Γ
 - State_WV



Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community



- ۸
- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit *
- PSSC Query: NPDES Permit Outlet PSSC Query: Source Water Protection PSSC
 - Agriculture

PWS Query: Zone of Critical Concern

٠

Residential

State_WV



PSSC Lists

Local and Regional PSSC List

HARPERS FERRY SWP PSSC LIST ELKS RUN ZCC

CTID SITE NAME	SITEDESCRIPTION	LATITUDE	LONGITUDE	SOURCE CAT	Associated Chemicals	THREAT TO CH	TUDEAT TO O
5982 e	Permitted Discharge Pipe (outfall)			Industrial	All	ITTINCAT_TO_GW	THREAT_TO_SV
5989	Other			Agriculture		·	M
5992	Wastewater Treatment Plant			Municipal	MP. D		
5995	Storm water basins/drains	7		Municipal	M VOC MP	L.	
5996	Highway			Municipal	PH. VOC. M	M	IM
5998	Cemeterles			Commercial	M SOC PH	1	<u></u>
5999	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN	- <u>C</u>	<u>L</u>
6000	Pasture*			Agriculture	MP. SOC		
6001	Crops, corn, soybean, wheat			Agriculture	NN SOC MP	<u></u>	<u>.</u>
6002	Utility Substation Transformers			Commercial	PH VOC SOC	<u>ц</u>	L.
6013	Schools			Municipal	SOC D VOC PH	<u></u>	
6187	Storm water basins/drains	17		Municipal	M. VOC. MP	Ind .	L
6188	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN		M
6185	Highway	1		Municipal	PH VOC M	11	n 14
6191	Septic Systems (leach field)*			Residential	MP VOC SOC TO NN	14	(n)
6192	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN	ия Ц	M
6193	Cemeteries			Commercial	M SOC PH	<u>n</u>	n
6194	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN	<u>u</u>	L.
6195	Pasture*		i	Agriculture	MP SOC	<u> </u>	<u>п</u>
6196	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN		L
7225	Crops, corn, soybean, wheat			Agriculture	NN SOC MP		н
7226	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN	L L	L.
8682	Auto repair shops			Commercial	PH M VOC HM SOC	<u>u</u>	п 14
8689	Research laboratories			Commercial	M VOC SOC		M
9074	Wastewater Treatment Plant			Municipal	MP D	<u>li</u>	A 4
9731	Gas Stations			Commercial	PH M VOC SOC		[V]
9733	Railroad Tracks (right of way)			Municipal	M VOC SOC PH	<u>n.</u>	14
10400	Wastewater Treatment Plant	1		Municipal	MP.D	1	M
11064	Railroad Tracks (right of way)			Municipal	M. VOC SOC PH	<u>ь</u>	1971 1.4
				·			

CTID SITE NAME	SITEDESCRIPTION	LATITUDE	LONGITUDE	COURCE CAT	Annual state of the later		
5982	Permitted Discharge Pipe (outfail)		Contonione	Jinductrial	Associated Chemicals	THREAT_TO_GW	THREAT TO S
5989	Other	- 7		Amfaulture	AU	<u> </u>	M
5992	Wastewater Treatment Plant			Agriculture	100.0	<u> </u>	
5996	Highway			Municipal	IMP, D	<u> </u>	м
6000	Pasture*			Municipal	PH, VOC, M	м	н
6001	Crops, coro, sovbean, wheat	+ 2		Agriculture	MP, SOC	L	L
6002	Utility Substation Transformers			rigriculture	NN, SOC, MP	L	L
6189	Highway			Commercial	PH, VOC, SOC	н	н
6193	Pasture*			Municipal	PH, VOC, M	M	н
6515	Schools			Agriculture	IMP, SOC	L	L
6516	Parking Ints/malls			Municipal	SOC, D, VOC, PH	<u>l</u>	L
6518	Marina /hoat dock			Commercial	VOC, РН	L	м
6520	Wartewater Treatment Direct	+4		Commercial	рн	l	н
5528	History	1.		Municipal	MP, D	L	м
7189	Postdonial fair de factile te			Municipal	PH, VOC, M	м	н
7191	Residential (single family nomes)			Residential	VOC, SOC, NN	н	н
7193	Residential (single family homes)		_	Residential	VOC, SOC, NN	н	н
7194	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC, SOC, NN	н	н
7195	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC, SOC, NN	н	н
7201	Crops: other			Agriculture	NN, MP, SOC	L	M
202	Quarry			Industrial	M, T, PH, VOC	M	1
205	Junk yards, scrap and auto			Commercial	PH, VOC, M, HM	н	H H
226	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC. SOC. NN	н	н И
542	Animal Feedlots			Agriculture	NN. MP. TO	н	ц
1087	Auto repair shops			Commercial	PH, M, VOC, HM, SOC	н	A4
1003	Highway			Municipal	PH. VOC. M	M	LL LL
1689	Research laboratories	Ĩ		9 Commercial	M. VOC. SOC	н	n u
1929	Septic Systems (leach field)*			Residential	MP. VOC. SOC. TO NN	.,, М	14
066	Wells: abandoned	1		Municinal	VOC SOC MP PH NN	и и	M
572	Wastewater Treatment Plant			Municipal	MP D		L
174	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOC SOC NN	L	M
731	Gas Stations			Commercial	PH M VOC SOC		H
733	Railroad Tracks (right of way)	7		Junicipal	A VOC COC DU	H	M
745	Septic Systems (leach field)*	1		Paridential	MR MOC SOC TO NIN	n	M
036	Residential (single family homes)	12		Residential	HIP, YOC, SOC, TO, NN	M	м
400	Wastewater Treatment Plant			Municipal	VOL SOL, NR	n	н
410	Septic Systems (leach field)*			Residential	MP, D		M
839	Residential (single family homes)	+;		Insidential	MP, VOL, SOL, TO, NN	M	M
840	Residential (single family homes)			Residential	VOL, SOL, NN	н	<u>H</u>
841	Septic Systems (leach field)*	1		Residential	VOL, SUL, NN	н	н
.075	Residential (single family homes)	7		Residential	MP, VOC, SOC, TO, NN	м	M
076	Septic Systems (leach field)*			nesidential	VUL, SOC, NN	Н	н
077	Highway	+7		nesidential	MP, VOC, SOC, TO, NN	м	м
	1			(Imunicipal	PH, VOC, M	M	н

.

Regulated PSSC List

HARPERS FERRY ELKS RUN ZCC ALL NPDES PSSC LIST

	ELKS RUN NPDES LIST					
OBJECTID	PRIMARY NAME	lines				
636	PRIMART_NAME	LOCATION_ADDRESS	CITY_NAME	FIPS_CODE	LATITUDE83	LONGITUDE83
6100			HALLTOWN	WV037		
6193	HARPERS FERRY WIP	PO BOX 217	HARPERS FERRY	WV037	39,334489	-77.76052
6231	1		RANSON	WV037		
8805	CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	1435 BAKERTON ROAD	HARPERS FERRY	54037	39 33400	-77 7612
10029	CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	1435 BAKERTON ROAD	HARPERS FERRY	54037	39 33400	-77.7612
19024			SHENANDOAH JUNCTION	WV037	35.55408	-11.1012
26590			CHARLES TOWN	WV037		
26873	1		CHARLES TOWN	WV037		
42560		NEAR ROUTE 16 (RIDGE ROAD)	SHENANDOAH JUNCTION	WV037		
	ELKS RUN NPDES PERMIT PSSC LIST		1	I		
OBJECTID	permit id	lfac name	J			
2148	WVG640047		Issuedate	expiredate	sub_desc	perm_type
44801		harpers rerry water works	4/6/2001	7/18/2028	Water Treatment Plant (GP)	Industrial
59631			3/11/2009	NA	Septic Seal Permit	Septic Tank
60769			4/23/2015	NA	Septic Seal Permit	Septic Tank
62350			4/12/2016	NA	Septic Seal Permit	Septic Tank
02330			4/22/2016	NA	Septic Seal Permit	Septic Tank
	ELKS RUN NPDES OUTLET PSSC LIST					
OBJECTID	permit_id .	fac name	liccuedate			····
5663	WVG640047	Harpers Ferry Water Works		expiredate	sub_desc	perm_type
5664	WVG640047	Harpers Ferry Water Works	4/6/2001	//18/2028	Water Treatment Plant (GP)	Industrial
		Independently water works	4/6/2001	7/18/2028	Water Treatment Plant (GP)	Inductoial

UECTID	PRIMARY NAME	CITY NAME	Inc.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
30218	CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	HAPPERS CERRY	FIPS_CODE	POSTAL_CODE	LATITUDE83	LONGITUDE83	
43595	CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	HADDERS ECDOV	54037	25425	39.33408	-77.76125	
		Infair End FERRY	54037	25425	39.33408	-77.76125	
	RCRA PSSCs						
NECTID	PRIMARY_NAME	LOCATION ADDRESS	CITY NAME				
1776	6	POTOMAC AVE	SHENANDOAH JUNCTION	FA027	POSTAL_CODE	LATITUDE83	LONGITUDE83
1900		FLOWING SPRINGS ROAD	SHENANDOAH JUNCTION	54037	25442-9501		
			. •		. •		
			·			u.	

		T	T		<u> </u>				
OBJECTID	PRIMARY_NAME	LOCATION_ADDRESS	CITY_NAME	COUNTY_NAME	FIPS_CODE	STATE CODE	POSTAL CODE	ATTUDERS	ONCITUDES
636	Line and Lin		HALLTOWN	IFFFFRSON	140/027				CONTROLO
6195	HARPERS FERRY WTP	PO BOX 217	HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON	WV037	WAV .	25423	5	
6231			RANSON	JEFFERSON	WV/037		25425	39.334489	-77.7605
8805	CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	1435 BAKERTON ROAD	HARPERS EEODY	IEEEEBEON			00000		
	CORPORATION OF		INAT CIG FERRI	JEFFERSON	54037	<u>/wv</u>	25425	39.33408	-77.761
10029	HARPERS FERRY	1435 BAKERTON ROAD	HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON	54037	wv	25425	39.33408	-77.761
10559		c urre o	SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25443		
11646		4	SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	54037	wv	25443		
						[
			SHENANDOAH						
1902	GE		JUNCTION	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25442		
19219	Bernet	UNITE	SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	WV037	w	75447		
19666			SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25443		
19913			HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25445		
21373			SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	54037	wv	25443		
22789			SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	54037	wv	25443		
26376		RY	KNOXVILLE	WASHINGTON	24043	MD	21758-1717		
26590			CHARLES TOWN	IFFFFFFFON	148.0027				
34121			SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	WV037	WV	25304		
39829			SHEPHERDSTOWN	IFEEEBSON	E 1017		25443		
40687				ALL LEUDON	54037	wv	25443		

435.00	LOWERING BELOW	NEAR ROUTE 16	SHENANDOAH						
42560	INSK BRIDGE	(RIDGE ROAD)	JUNCTION	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25447	39 360020	-77 0/
						1		39.300029	-//.54
		· ·							
44397		F	KNOXVILLE	FREDERICK	MD021	MD	21758		
47497		R _	SHARPSBURG	WASHINGTON	24043	MD	21782-1826		
4754			SHARPSBURG	WASHINGTON	24043	MD	21782-1826		
49370			SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25443		
4937	N		SHEPHERDSTOWN	JEFFERSON	WV037	w	25443		
51719			HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON	WV037	wv	25425		
						•	•		
	NPDES PERMIT								
ECTID	NPDES PERMIT permit_kd	fac_name	issuedate	expiredate	sub_desc	perm_type	1	T	
ECTID 648	NPDES PERMIT permit_id	fac_name shi	issuedate 10/5/1998	expiredate 6/14/2028	sub_desc	perm_type Sewage			
648 648	NPDES PERMIT permit_Id	fac_name Sh	issuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General	perm_type Sewage			
648 648	NPDES PERMIT permit_id	fac_name SM	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment	perm_type Sewage Sewage			
648 1757 2148	NPDES PERMIT permit_id Viewee 9	fac_name SM	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP)	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241	NPDES PERMIT permit_ki	fac_name	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801	NPDES PERMIT permit_kd Vieweeleg 3 47 47	fac_name	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631	NPDES PERMIT permit_kd VIELE 9 VIELE 9 VIELE 9 VIELE 9	fac_name SN	1ssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769	NPDES PERMIT permit_kd V	fac_name Shares	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769 67852	NPDES PERMIT permit_ld VIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	fac_name Single Comments	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016 2/28/2020	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769 67852 67923 (NPDES PERMIT permit_kl VI 9 47 47 48 9 <tr< td=""><td>fac_name</td><td>lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/28/2020</td><td>expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA</td><td>sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit</td><td>perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></tr<>	fac_name	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/28/2020	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769 67852 67923 (NPDES PERMIT permit_ld V	fac_name Shares	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/28/2020	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769 67852 67923 67923 679358	NPDES PERMIT permit_id VIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	fac_hame ST	lissuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/28/2020 2/13/2023	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 2/9/2024	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Industrial			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769 67852 67923 67926 67923 67926 77926 77926 779767 77976 77976 77976 779776 779776 779776	NPDES PERMIT permit_kl VI 9 47 47 47 47 48 9 <	fac_name 51	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/28/2020 2/13/2023 6/27/2019	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Storm Water Construction (MCA) Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 60769 67852 67923 (69358 75284 75386	NPDES PERMIT permit_kd	fac_name 5M	Issuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/13/2020 2/13/2023 6/27/2019	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Storm Water Construction (MCA) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 59631 67852 67923 (69358 75284 75284 75336 77924	NPDES PERMIT permit_ld V	fac_name Shares	lssuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/28/2020 2/13/2029 6/27/2019 6/27/2019 8/5/2021	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA 2/9/2024 NA NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Storm Water Construction (MCA) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank Septic Tank			
ECTID 648 1757 2148 20241 44801 596311 60769 67852 67923 (69358 75284 75336 77924 78946 (NPDES PERMIT permit_id VIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	fac name	lissuedate 10/5/1998 6/26/2000 4/6/2001 9/10/2009 3/11/2009 4/23/2015 4/12/2016 2/28/2020 2/13/2023 6/27/2019 8/5/2021 2/10/2023	expiredate 6/14/2028 6/30/2019 7/18/2028 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA	sub_desc Ind POTW Home Aeration Unit General Water Treatment Plant (GP) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Storm Water Construction (MCA) Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit Septic Seal Permit	perm_type Sewage Sewage Industrial Septic Tank Septic Tank			
s

82290	064380		2/9/2022	NA	Septic Seal Permit	Septic Tank	
82535	064481		2/9/2022	NA	Septic Seal Permit	Septic Tank	
						Jeep te tente	
	NPDES OUTLET						
BECTID	permit_ld	fac_name	issuedate	expiredate	sub_desc	perm type	
2274		[3]	10/5/1998	6/14/2028		Sewage	
2279		d.	10/5/1998	6/14/2028	Ind POTW	Sewage	
2276	6		10/5/1998	6/14/2028	Ind POTW	Sewage	
2277			10/5/1998	6/14/2028	Ind POTW	Sewage	
5248			6/26/2000	6/30/2019	Home Aeration Unit General	Sewage	
15879	v		6/23/2022	6/30/2024	Home Aeration Unit General	Seware	

May 2024

F

	ALL FRS PSSC LIST								
VECTID	PRIMARY_NAME	CITY_NAME	COUNTY NAME	EIRS CODE	STATE COOL				
8418		KNOXVILLE	WASHINGTON	24042	DIALE_CODE	PUSTAL CODE	LATITUDERS	LONGITUDEA3	ļ
						21/30-1212			1
	CAL								1
16031	ND	SHARPSBURG			MD	21782			J
A3505	CONCERNMENT OF MANY OF A CONCERNMENT	HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON	54037	WV	25425			
65018	CORPORATION OF HARPERS FERRY	HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON	54037	WV	25425			
74173		HARPERS FERRY	JEFFERSON		WV	25425			
7555A		SHARPSBURG	WASHINGTON	24043	MD	21782-1826			F
10000		INNOXVILLE	WASHINGTON	24043	MD	21758		-7	
	RCRA PSSC LIST								
ECTID	PRIMARY NAME	LOCATION ADORESS	COT NAME	lanuari di					
1850		Contraction Provides	CHEDUCDOCTONIN	COUNTY NAME	FIPS_CODE	STATE_CODE	POSTAL CODE	LATITUDERS	LONGITUDE
1900		E	SHENANDOAN HINCTION	JEFFERSON	54037	wv	25443		
9529			HARPERS FEARY	IEFFERSON	54037	WV	25442		2
27516		2	KNOWIUE	WACHINGTON	54037	wv	25425		
									·
	•								
	•								
	•								

SystemID	PERMITID	TOTAL_CA PACITY	SUBSTAN CES	LATITUDE	LONGITUD E	PUBGW WINTAKE SYSNAM E	PUBGW_ WINTAKE _LOCALNA ME	PUBGW_ WINTAKE_ PROX_MIL ES	PUBSW_ WINTAKE _LOCALNA ME	PUBSW_ WINTAKE _FACNAM E	PUBSW_ WINTAKE _PROX_M	OBJECTID	TANK_LAB	TANK_S
		2500	Del-Pak			MORGAN GROVE PARK	WELLO1	1	HARPER'S FERRY WATER WORKS BACKUP1	POTOMAC RIVER INTAKE	13	1621	019-	Current
	AST W CHE	1500 MICALS PS9	Diesel fuel	3		MORGAN GROVE PARK	WELLO1	1	HARPER'S FERRY WATER WORKS BACKUP1	POTOMAC RIVER INTAKE	13	1771	019- 00000031	Current In use
ESPONSI LE_PART _ID	TANK_ID	CAS_AND _SUBSTAN CES	SUBSTAN CES	LONGITUD E	LATITUDE	TANK_ST ATUS_CO DE	OBJECTID	RESPONSI BLE_PART Y_NAME	REF_DOC	TANK_LAB	SITE_ADD RESS_STR EET	SITE CITY		
								-						
6		OTHER^De I-Pak	Del-Pak			c	18062		2014- 0001271	019- 00000014	1	Shepherdst own		
Come of		OTHER^De I-Pak 68476-34- 6^Diesel fuel	Del-Pak Diesel fuel			с	18062 18066		2014- 0001271 2014- 0001395	019- 00000014 019- 00000031		Shepherdst own Shepherdst own		

APPENDIX B. EARLY WARNING MONITORING SYSTEM FORMS

Select and Attach the Appropriate Form for Your System

Form A - Complete if you currently have an early warning monitoring system for a groundwater source.

Form B - Complete if you currently have an early warning monitoring system installed for a surface water source.

Form C - If you do not currently have an early warning monitoring system installed for a surface water intake or are planning to upgrade or replace your current system, complete this form.

Form D - If you do not currently have an early warning monitoring system installed for a groundwater source or are planning to upgrade or replace your current system, complete this form.

Note: You may need to fill out and attach more than one form to your Protection Plan, depending on your current situation.

Appendix B - Form A Surface Monitoring Worksheet

Describe the type of early warning detection equipment installed:

XYLEM EWMS installed at Elks Run intake continuously monitors temp, turbidity, D.O., ORP, Blue/Green Algae, pH, TDS, conductivity, chlorophyll and petroleum hydrocarbons.

The unit also monitors flow rate and depth of water at the intake wetwell. The data is cloud based and the Town is researching the establishment of alarm setpoints for all parameters.

Describe the mechanism to store the data and an institutional framework to analyze and interpret the data:

The Xylem unit stores data via the cloud and can be accessed online. We are hoping to have the unit calibrated in 2024.

Describe the process to determine the credibility of a contamination event if a change is detected in the quality of source water:

Harpers Ferry Water Works utilizes the Potomac River Basin Commission, local and regional news, West Virginia Department of Protection, and the West Virginia State Health and Human Services Department to determine credibility of a spill, contaminant, or change in water quality. If a notable change is detected in water quality for a parameter regularly monitored, an additional water quality sample will be taken immediately for result verification. If the result is confirmed, more comprehensive testing could be performed, depending on the type of water quality change observed (for the purpose of differentiating between hazard types). Harpers Ferry Water Works personnel may also choose to close the Elks Run Intake until an appropriate course of action is determined. This would not affect the quality or quantity of water delivered to customers, as the utility has adequate storage for at least three days, as well as a backup intake on the Potomac River, which has the capacity to meet system demands. If the sample is in violation of an MCL, an additional water quality sample will be taken immediately for result verification. As water quality results are pending, Harpers Ferry Water Works personnel should close the Elks Run Intake until an appropriate Course of action is determined. This would not affect the quality or quantity of water delivered to customers, as the utility sample will be taken immediately for result verification. As water quality results are pending, Harpers Ferry Water Works personnel should close the Elks Run Intake until an appropriate course of action is determined. This would not affect the quality or quantity of water delivered to customers, as the utility has adequate storage for at least three days, as well as a backup intake on the Potomac River, which has the capacity to meet system demands.

APPENDIX C. COMMUNICATION PLAN TEMPLATE

Corporation Of Harpers Ferry

PWSID: WV3301912

Authorizing Signature: Greg Vaugn

Contact Phone Number: (304)535-2206

Contact Email Address: mayor@harpersferrywv.us

Plan Developed On: May 2024

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

This plan was developed by [insert name, title of person completing plan, and who they work for] to meet certain requirements of the Source Water and Assessment Protection Program (SWAPP) and the Wellhead Protection Program (WHPP) for the State of West Virginia, as directed by the federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and state laws and regulations.

INTRODUCTION

Legislative Rule 64CSR3 requires public water systems to develop a Communication Plan that documents how public water suppliers, working in concert with state and local emergency response agencies, shall notify state and local health agencies and the public in the event of a spill or contamination event that poses a potential threat to public health and safety. The plan must indicate how the public water supplier will provide updated information, with an initial notification to the public to occur no later than thirty minutes after the supplier becomes aware that the spill, release or potential contamination of the public water system poses a potential threat to public health and safety.

The public water system has responsibility to communicate to the public, as well as to state and local health agencies. This plan is intended to comply with the requirements of Legislative Rule 64CSR3, and other state and federal regulations.

TIERS REPORTING SYSTEM

This water system has elected to use the Tiered Incident / Event Reporting System (TIERS) for communicating with the public, agencies, the media, and other entities in the event of a spill or other incident that may threaten water quality. TIERS provides a multi-level notification framework, which escalates the communicated threat level commensurate with the drinking water system risks associated with a particular contamination incident or event. TIERS also includes a procedural flow chart illustrating key incident response communication functions and how they interface with overall event response / incident management actions. Finally, TIERS identifies the roles and responsibilities for key people involved in risk response, public notification, news media and other communication.

TIERS provides an easy-to-remember five-tiered **A-B-C-D-E** risk-based incident response communication format, as described below. Table 1 provides also associated risk levels.

A = **A**nnouncement. The water system is issuing an announcement to the public and public agencies about an incident or event that may pose a threat to water quality. Additional information will be provided as it becomes available. As always, if water system customers notice anything unusual about their water, they should contact the water system.

B = **B**oil Water Advisory. A boil water advisory has been issued by the water system. Customers may use the water for showering, bathing, and other non-potable uses, but should boil water used for drinking or cooking.

C = **C**annot Drink. The water system asks that users not drink or cook with the water at this time. Non-potable uses, such as showering, bathing, cleaning, and outdoor uses are not affected.

D = **D**o Not Use. An incident or event has occurred affecting nearly all uses of the water. Do not use the water for drinking, cooking, showering, bathing, cleaning, or other tasks where water can come in contact with your skin. Water can be used for flushing commodes and fire protection.

E = **E**mergency. Water cannot be used for any reason.

Tier	Tier Category	Risk Level	Tier Summary
A	Announcement	Low	The water system is issuing an announcement to the public and public agencies about an incident or event that could pose a threat to public health and safety. Additional information will be provided as it becomes available.
B	Boil Water Advisory	Moderate	Water system users are advised to boil any water to be used for drinking or cooking, due to possible microbial contamination. The system operator will notify users when the boil water advisory is lifted.
C	Cannot Drink	High	System users should not drink or cook with the water until further notice. The water can still be used for showering, bathing, cleaning, and other tasks.
D	Do Not Use	Very High	The water should only be used for flushing commodes and fire protection until further notice. More information on this notice will be provided as soon as it is available.
E	Emergency	Extremely High	The water should not be used for any purpose until further notice. More information on this notice will be provided as soon as it is available.

COMMUNICATION TEAM

The Communication Team for the water system is listed in the table below, along with key roles. In the event of a spill or other incident that may affect water quality, the water system spokesperson will provide initial information, until the team assembles (if necessary) to provide follow-up communication

Water system communication team members, organizations, and roles.

Team Member Name	Organization	Phone	Email
Greg Vaugn	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	(304)535-2206	
Stephen Paradis	Corporation Of Harpers Ferry	(304)535-6555	Spanne and a second

In the event of a spill, release, or other incident that may threaten water quality, members of the team who are available will coordinate with the management staff of the local water supplier to:

- Collect information needed to investigate, analyze, and characterize the incident/event
- · Provide information to the management staff, so they can decide how to respond
- Assist the management staff in handling event response and communication duties
- Coordinate fully and seamlessly with the management staff to ensure response effectiveness

COMMUNICATION TEAM DUTIES

The communication team will be responsible for working cooperatively with the management staff and state and local emergency response agencies to notify local health agencies and the public of the initial spill or contamination event. The team will also provide updated information related to any contamination or impairment of the source water supply or the system's drinking water supply.

According to Legislative Rule 64CSR3, the initial notification to the public will occur no later than thirty minutes after the public water system becomes aware that the spill, release or potential contamination of the public water system poses a potential threat to public health and safety. As part of the group implementing the Source Water Protection Plan, team members are expected to be familiar with the plan, including incident/event response and communication tasks. Specifically, team members should:

- Be knowledgeable on elements of the Source Water Protection Plan and Communication Plan
- Attend team meetings to ensure up-to-date knowledge of the system and its functions
- · Participate in periodic exercises that "game out" incident response and communication tasks
- · Help to educate local officials, the media, and others on source water protection
- · Cooperate with water supplier efforts to coordinate incident response communication
- · Be prepared to respond to requests for field investigations of reported incidents
- · Not speak on behalf of the water supplier unless designated as the system's spokesperson

The primary spokesperson will be responsible for speaking on behalf of the water system to local agencies, the public, and the news media. The spokesperson should work with the management staff and the team to ensure that all communication is clear, accurate, timely, and consistent. The spokesperson may authorize and/or direct others to issue news releases or other information that has been approved by the system's management staff. The spokesperson is expected to be on call immediately when an incident or event which may threaten water quality occurs. The spokesperson will perform the following tasks in the event of a spill, release, or other event that threatens water quality:

- Announce which risk level (A, B, C, D, or E) will apply to the public notifications that are issued
- · Issue news releases, updates, and other information regarding the incident/event
- · Use the news media, email, social media, and other appropriate information venues
- Ensure that news releases are sent to local health agencies and the public
- Respond to questions from the news media and others regarding the incident/event
- Appear at news conferences and interviews to explain incident response, etc.

INCIDENT / EVENT COMMUNICATION PROCEDURE

The flow chart in this section illustrates how the water system will respond when it receives a report that a spill, release, or other contamination event may have occurred. Key elements of the flow chart are described below.

Communication with agencies, the public, and the media during threat incidents

Upon initial notification of the incident/event, system managers and staff will collect information and verify the need for further investigation. Only properly trained personnel will perform onsite investigations if permitted by emergency responders. If further investigation is warranted, and the initial facts support it, the water system spokesperson will issue a public communication statement consistent with the threat level. In addition, water system personnel and partners will be dispatched to conduct reconnaissance, a threat assessment, and a threat characterization, if present. This work may include:

- · Verification of the incident/event type (spill, release, etc.)
- · Location of incident/event
- Type of material(s) involved in spill, release, etc.
- Quantity of material involved
- · Potential of the material to move, migrate, or be transported
- Relevant time factor(s) in the risk assessment (e.g., downstream movement rate)
- · Overall level of risk to water system, whether low, moderate, high, or very high
- Development of the initial risk characterization

As the flow chart indicates, several iterative cycles will occur after the initial threat assessment, including communication with local agencies and the public, further investigation of the incident, possible implementation of

the water system's contingency plan, and eventual elimination of the threat and a return to normal operations. Communication activities during this period will include:

- The initial release (i.e., Announcement, Boil Water Advisory, Cannot Drink, Do Not Use, or Emergency)
 Sent to local health agencies, the public, and the news media within 30 minutes
- Notification of the local water system's source water protection and communication teams
 If warranted by initial findings regarding the spill, release, or incident
- Notification of the WV Bureau of Public Health
 - As required
- · Periodic information updates, as incident response information is received
- · Updates to the applicable A-B-C-D-E advisory tier, as necessary

If time permits and the need arises, after the threat level is reduced, and operations return to normal, the water system staff, the communication and source water protection teams, and their partners may conduct a post-event review and assessment. The purpose of the review is to examine the response to the incident, relevant communication activities, and overall outcomes. Plans and procedures may be updated, altered, or adapted based on lessons learned through this process.

EMERGENCY SHORT FORMS

Emergency Communication Information

		Name)	Phone	ne Email		10-1
Designated spokes	person:	Greg	Vaugn	(304)535-2206		m	
Alternate spokespe	rson:	Stephen Paradis		(304)535-6555			
Designated location disseminate informa media:	Corpo	Corporation of Harpers Ferry/Town Hall					
Method of Contact:	Steve WVB Radie News Telev Robo	e Allen - Hom PH – Kearne o – WRNR, W spaper – Spiri vision – WHA o-calling syste	eland Securit ysville Distric /EPM t of Jefferson G TV m	y t Office , Martii	nsburg Jou	rnal	
Media Contacts:	Name	Title			Phone Number		Email
	Cara Young		Spirit of Jefferson Office (30 Manager		(304)7	l)725-2046 sojofficemanager @gmail.com	
Tiffany Niebauer The Journal Offic Manager		Office	(304)263-8931		tniebauer@journal -news.net		WRNR Radio
	(304)263-65	86			WEPM	Radio	
(304)263-8868			Andrew Wyatt		Genera WHAG	al Manager TV	(301)797-4400

.

Emergency Service Contacts

	Name	Emergency Phone	Alternative Phone	Email
Police	Harpers Ferry	(304)535-6366		june
Fire	Friendship	(304)535-2211		
Ambulance	Friendship	(304)535-2211		
Hazmat	DEP Spill Hotline	(800)642-3074		
Other	Jefferson County Sheriff	(304)728-3205		
Other				
Other			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Sensitive Populations

Other Communitie that are served by the Utility:	es /	Corporation o	f Bolivai	, Jefferson	County				
Major User/Sensit	ive	Name		Emergen	y Phone	Altern	ative Phone	En	nail
Notification		Larry Moore NPS		(1111)					
		Bolivar Court Apartments - prop mgr Jeannie		*					
		Hillside Childo and Developn Center	Hillside Childcare and Development Center		Çmanjanınan (1				
		Harpers Ferry Medical Center		(****		Q		h.	
		Harpers Ferry Middle School				(****)			
		Potomac Terrace							
		Quality Inn	Quality Inn						
		Clarion Inn						,	
EED District Office)	Name		Phone		Email			
Comact		Justin Jordan						v	
OEHS Readiness Coordinator		Lee Orr			1990				
Downstream Water System	Wa Na	ater System me	Contac	t Name	Emergenc Phone	y	Alternate Phon	ie	Email
Contacts	Cit Bru	y of unswick	Jeremy	/ Mose	(301)834-7	7500	(
Are you planning on implementing the TIER C plan?:			TIER C	ommunicat	ions	Yes		L	

Emergency Service Key Staff Members

	Name	Title	Phone	Email
Key Staff Responsible Rrocedures:	o for Coordinating Emer	gency Response	Stephen Paradis	Public Works Administrator
	sparadis@harpersfe rrywv.us	Greg Vaughn	Mayor	(304)535-2206
mayor@harpersferry wv.us	Chris Styer	Chief Operator	(304)535-6555	
Staff Responsible for Keeping Confidential PSSC Information and Releasing to Emergency Responders.		Chris Styer	Chief Operator	(304)535-6555
Company Contractory	Stephen Paradis	Public Works Administrator	(304)535-6555	

·

Emergency Response Information

List Laboratories available to perform sample analysis in case of	Name	Phone
emergency.	WV BPH – Bardane District Environmental Laboratory	(304)725-5832
	PACE	(304)255-2500
	Fredericktown Lab	(301)293-3340
	Brad Kincheloe - Bardane District Lab	(804)334-4876
Has utility developed a detailed Emergency Response Plan in accord Health Security Bioterrorism preparedness and Response Plan Act of following areas?:	dance with the Public of 2002 that covers the	Yes
When was the emergency response plan developed or last updated?).	2024

EMERGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION

State Emergency Spill Notification

1-800-642-3074

Office of Emergency Services

http://www.wvdhsem.gov/

Charleston, WV- (304) 558-5380

WV Bureau for Public Health Office of Environmental Health Services (OEHS)

www.wvdhhr.org/oehs

Readiness Coordinator - Lee Orr Phone: 304-356-4290 Cell: 304-550-5607 E-mail: Lee.E.Orr@wv.gov

Environmental Engineering Division Staff Charleston, Central Office (304) 558-2981 Beckley, District 1 (304) 256-6666 St. Albans, District 2 (304) 722-0611 Kearneysville, District 4 (304) 725-9453 Wheeling, District 5 (304) 238-1145 Fairmont, District 6 (304) 368-2530

National Response Center - Chemical, Oil, & Chemical/Biological Terrorism

1-800-424-8802

WV State Fire Marshal's Office

1-800-233-3473

West Virginia State Police

1-304-746-2100

WV Watch – Report Suspicious Activity

1-866-989-2824

DEP Distance Calculator

http://tagis.dep.wv.gov/pswicheck/

PRESS RELEASE ATTACHMENTS

TIERS Levels A, B, C, D, and E

UTILITY ISSUED NOTICE – LEVEL A PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM ANNOUNCEMENT A WATER SYSTEM INVESTIGATION IS UNDERWAY

On at: AM/PM, the	Water System began investigating an							
ncident that may affect local water quality.								
The incident involves the following situation at this location:								
There are no restrictions on water use at this time. As always, about their water – such as abnormal odors, colors, sheen, etc	if water system customers notice anything unusual c. – they should contact the water system at							
At this time there is no need for concern if you have consumed	l or used the water.							

Regular updates will be provided about this Announcement as water system staff continue their investigation. Again, there are no restrictions on water use at this time.

State Water System ID#	Date Distributed:	
5		

UTILITY ISSUED NOTICE - LEVEL B

BOIL WATER ADVISORY

A BOIL WATER ADVISORY IS IN EFFECT

On at: am/pm, a water problem occurred causing contamination of your water. The areas that						
are affected are as follows:						
□ Entire Water System or □ Other:						
CONDITIONS INDICATE THERE IS A HIGH PROBABILITY THAT YOUR WATER IS CONTAMINATED. TESTING						
HAS NOT OCCURRED TO CONFIRM OR DENY THE PRESENCE OF CONTAMINATION IN YOUR WATER.						
What should I do?						
• DO NOT DRINK THE WATER WITHOUT BOILING IT FIRST. Bring all water to a boil, let it boil for one minute, and let it cool before using, or use bottled water. Boiled or bottled water should be used for drinking, making ice, brushing teeth, washing dishes, bathing, and food preparation until further notice. Boiling kills bacteria and other organisms in the water.						
What happened?						
The problem is related to						
What is being done?						
The water system is taking the following action:						
What should a customer do if they have consumed or used the water?						
We will inform you when you no longer need to boil your water. We anticipate resolving the problem within						
hours/days. For more information, please contact at or at						
General guidelines on ways to lessen the health risk are available from the EPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline at 1 (800) 426-4791.						
Please share this information others who use this water, especially those who may not have received this notice						
directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes, schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting this notice in a public place or distributing copies by hand or mail.						
This notice was distributed by						
State Water System ID# Date Distributed:						

UTILITY ISSUED NOTICE – LEVEL C "CANNOT DRINK" WATER NOTIFICATION A LEVEL C WATER ADVISORY IS IN EFFECT

On at: am/pm, a water problem occur are affected are as follows:	red causing contamination of your water. The areas that
□ Entire Water System or □ Other:	
CONDITIONS INDICATE THERE IS A HIGH PROBABILIT HAS NOT OCCURRED TO CONFIRM OR DENY THE PR	Y THAT YOUR WATER IS CONTAMINATED. TESTING ESENCE OF CONTAMINATION IN YOUR WATER.
What should I do?	
 DO NOT DRINK THE WATER. You can't drink the bathing, toilet-flushing, and other non-potable BOILING WILL NOT PURIFY THE WATER. Do not of the back of the bac	water, but you can use it for showering, purposes. drink the water, even if it is boiled.
What happened?	
The problem is related to	
What is being done?	
 The water system is taking the following action: 	
What should a customer do if they have consumed or used	the water?
We will inform you when the water is safe to drink. We anti- hours/days. For more information – or to report unusual wa etc. – please contact at or	cipate resolving the problem within ter conditions such as abnormal odors, colors, sheen, at
General guidelines on ways to lessen the health risk are av (800) 426-4791.	vailable from the EPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline at 1
Please share this information others who use this water, es directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes this notice in a public place or distributing copies by hand of This notice was distributed by	specially those who may not have received this notice , schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting or mail.
State Water System ID# Da	te Distributed:

UTILITY ISSUED NOTICE - LEVEL D **"DO NOT USE" WATER NOTIFICATION**

A LEVEL D WATER ADVISORY IS IN EFFEC

On	_at	_:	am/pm, a water problem occurred causing contamination of your water.	The areas that
are affected ar	e as fo	ollows:		

□ Entire Water System or □ Other:

CONDITIONS INDICATE THERE IS A HIGH PROBABILITY THAT YOUR WATER IS CONTAMINATED. TESTING HAS NOT OCCURRED TO CONFIRM OR DENY THE PRESENCE OF CONTAMINATION IN YOUR WATER.

What should I do?

- DO NOT DRINK THE WATER. The water is contaminated.
- · DO NOT SHOWER OR BATHE IN THE WATER. You can't use the water for drinking, showering, or bathing. It can be used for toilet flushing and firefighting.
- · BOILING WILL NOT PURIFY THE WATER. Do not use the water, even if it is boiled. The type of contamination suspected is not removed by boiling.

What happened?

The problem is related to

What is being done?

The water system is taking the following action: ______

What should a customer do if they have consumed or used the water?

We will inform you when the water is safe to drink. We anticipate resolving the problem within hours/days. For more information - or to report unusual water conditions such as abnormal odors, colors, sheen, etc. – please contact ______ at _____ or _____ at _____.

Please share this information others who use this water, especially those who may not have received this notice directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes, schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting this notice in a public place or distributing copies by hand or mail.

This notice was distributed by _____

State Water System ID# _____ Date Distributed: _____

UTILITY ISSUED NOTICE - LEVEL E **EMERGENCY WATER NOTIFICATION** A LEVEL E WATER ADVISORY IS IN EFFECT

On	_at	_:	am/pm,	a water	problem	occurred	l causing	, contam	nination	of your	water.	The are	as that
are affected ar	e as fo	ollows:											

□ Entire Water System or □ Other: _____

CONDITIONS INDICATE THERE IS A HIGH PROBABILITY THAT YOUR WATER IS CONTAMINATED. TESTING HAS NOT OCCURRED TO CONFIRM OR DENY THE PRESENCE OF CONTAMINATION IN YOUR WATER.

What should I do?

- DO NOT DRINK THE WATER. The water is contaminated.
- DO NOT USE THE WATER FOR ANY PURPOSE! You can't use the water for drinking, showering, or bathing, or any other use - not even for toilet flushing.
- BOILING WILL NOT PURIFY THE WATER. Do not use the water, even if it is boiled. The type of contamination suspected is not removed by boiling.

What happened?

The problem is related to ______

What is being done?

The water system is taking the following action: ______

What should a customer do if they have consumed or used the water?

We will inform you when the water is safe to drink. We anticipate resolving the problem within hours/days. For more information - or to report unusual water conditions such as abnormal odors, olors, sheen, etc.

– please contact ______ at _____ or _____ at _____.

Please share this information others who use this water, especially those who may not have received this notice directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes, schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting this notice in a public place or distributing copies by hand or mail.

This notice was distributed by _____

State Water System ID# _____ Date Distributed: _____

APPENDIX D. SINGLE SOURCE FEASIBILITY

Water Source Alternative:

Back up intake	
Name of Alternative:	Potomac River
Brief Description of the Alternative:	Potomac River
Feasible?:	Yes
Provide Cost Estimate:	\$0
Would this alternative supply 100% of your needs?:	Yes
Economic Criteria - Operation and Maintenance Costs:	0
Economic Criteria - Capital Cost:	0
Technical Criteria - Permitting:	0
Technical Criteria - Flexibility:	0
Technical Criteria - Resilience:	0
Technical Criteria - Institutional Requirements:	0
Environmental Criteria - Environmental Impacts:	0
Environmental Criteria - Aesthetic Impacts:	0
Environmental Criteria - Stakeholder Issues:	0
Final Score:	0.00%

Feasibility Study Narrative

Single Source Feasibility Study

The single source feasibility is required for a public water utility which is served by a single surface water source or a single groundwater source (i.e., one well or one spring). Harpers Ferry Water Works has an alternative water supply source of practically near-infinite quantity in place at this time. As a result, a single source feasibility study is not required for this utility at this time.

The primary source serving Harpers Ferry is a surface water intake on Elks Run, downgradient of the confluence of Elks Run and Elk Branch. Upgradient of the surface water intake is the Town Spring. The pipeline connecting Town Spring to the Harpers Ferry Water Treatment Plant has been damaged and/or collapsed, and now discharges directly into Elks Run. As a result, the quality of water emanating from the Town Spring influences the quality of water in Elks Run.

In the event that a contaminant occurrence requires that the Elks Run intake be manually closed, water treatment plant operators have the option of manually activating pumps in the wet well for the Potomac River Intake. The Potomac River serves as an emergency backup source for Harpers Ferry during times of drought or during emergency situations. Harpers Ferry Water Works last exercised the appurtenances for the Potomac River Intake in November 2023. Though functional and adequate for meeting all demand during a three month drought period, a number of deficiencies were noted and a preliminary plan to address these has been initiated.

The twin pumps at the base of the Potomac wet well were designed for redundancy. Both are operational, though neither can be removed from the well as designed due to corrosion. The well can not be evacuated below a depth of six (6) feet due making extraction of the pumps for service or inspection at this time impossible without the use of a diver crew and/or external pumping equipment to make the well safe for a worker to enter. The original pumps lack the controls to operate remotely from the plant or to adjust the pump speed. The filtration system is required to operate at a speed above the designed sedimentation basin throughput. It is not possible to blend Potomac River with Elk Run water. Regular exercise of the backup solution needs to be undertaken to ensure full functionality in times of need. In times of drought, a re-design would enable water captured from both Elks Run and the Potomac River to be combined to meet demand. In the event that Elks Run becomes contaminated, the Potomac River Intake and wet well have the capacity to meet system demand on a daily basis.

Additionally, the water system possesses 694,000 gallons (991,000 gallons derated to 70% based upon lower limit of typical operating levels) of finished water storage, which has the capacity to meet average annual system demand for approximately three days. An 176,000 gallons additional (57,000 gallons sed basin plus 119,000 gallons clearwell) derated to 70% to 123,200 gallons of raw water can be accessed if required. The system possesses abundant capacity to handle short-term emergencies.

At this juncture, creation of an interconnection with another water utility is economically infeasible and is not open for consideration by the utility. Likewise, additional expansion of raw and treated water storage capacity is unnecessary, and spatially and economically challenging. Between the Elks Run and the Potomac River Intakes, which function as distinct, independent sources of water for the system, Harpers Ferry already possesses the capability to provide safe drinking water to its customers in the event that either source becomes contaminated. Should a failure occur at the water treatment plant for any reason that is of duration long enough that the treated water storage becomes depleted; the utility would have the capability to bring in a portable water treatment trailer using its WVWARN membership. In extreme circumstances, the utility also could consider creating a purchase agreement with nearby water utilities to truck in water. To perform such an assessment entails reviewing the permits and capacities of other water systems to identify suitable entities that could handle such a demand. Such an analysis is not a scope element of this work, nor is it required at this juncture, because of the utility's capability to utilize two different water sources capable of satisfying Harper Ferry's demands.

Matrix Document

Single Source Feasibility Study

If a public water utility's water supply plant is served by a single-source intake for a surface water supply source or a GWUDI source, the submitted SWPP must also include an examination and analysis of the technical and economic feasibility of alternative sources of water to provide continued safe and reliable public water service in the event that its primary source of supply is detrimentally affected by contamination from a chemical release or spill event, or other reasons (including drought). These alternatives may include a secondary source, two days of additional raw or treated water storage, interconnection with neighboring systems, or other options identified on a local level. Note: a suitable secondary intake would draw water supplies from a substantially different location or water source.

Harpers Ferry Water Works has an alternative surface water intake on the Potomac River. In a contaminant event were to impact the Elks Run intake, the system could rely on the Potomac River intake to meet its full demand. Additionally, the system has at least three days' worth of finished water storage, which would meet demands for short-term emergencies related to the Elks Run intake. Because the system has an alternative backup source in place, it is not considered a single source system, and a feasibility study matrix is not required at this time. However, a brief narrative describing alternative emergency preparedness options is provided in **Appendix E**.

Communication Plan

Harpers Ferry Water Works also has developed a Communication Plan that documents the manner in which the public water utility, working in concert with state and local emergency response agencies, shall notify the local health agencies and the public of a spill or contamination event, and provide updated information related to any contamination or impairment of the system's sources or the system's drinking water supply. The initial notification to the public for any such event will occur no later than 30 minutes after the public water system becomes aware of the spill, release, or potential contamination of the public water system. Harpers Ferry Water Works will update the Communication Plan as needed to ensure contact information is up to date.

The water system has procedures in place for various types of significant spills or other emergencies that can reasonably be predicted at the source location or within the SWPA. The chain-of-command, notification procedures and response actions are known by water system employees.

The WVBPH has developed a recommended communication plan template that provides a tiered incident communication process to provide a universal system of alert levels to utilities and water system managers; Harpers Ferry Water Works has opted to utilize this procedure. The Communication Plan for Harpers Ferry Water Works is attached as **Appendix C**.

31

APPENDIX E. SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION